Town of Southern Shores

5375 N. Virginia Dare Trail, Southern Shores, NC 27949
Phone 252-261-2394 / Fax 252-255-0876

info@southernshores-nc.gov

www.southernshores-nc.gov

Town of Southern Shores, North Carolina
Joint Meeting of Town Council and Planning Board
January 22, 2008
Pitts Center, Southern Shores Town Hall Complex

MINUTES

The joint meeting of the Town Council and the Planning Board was held January 22, 2008 in the Pitts
Center. Attending the meeting was: Mayor Smith and Council Members McDonald, Hess, Pfizenmayer
and Stroud, and Planning Board Chairman Kowalski and Members Poisal, Russell, Peckens, Wendt and
Conners. Planning Board Member Walter was absent with excuse. Staff members in attendance were
Read, Cowan, Gordin, and Gabrys.

Mayor Smith called the meeting to order at 10:15 A.M. and turned the meeting over to Chairman
Kowalski. Chairman Kowalski stated this is the second year a joint meeting has been held between the
Council and the Planning Board. The purpose of the meeting is to try and coordinate with each where the
two entities are headed, where they have been and what are the current status and concerns. Chairman
Kowalski stated there are a number of topics identified and he would like to begin with Part 1 — Council
expectations regarding ongoing activities.

Chairman Kowalski stated the major premise is to address why the Council refers items to the Planning
Board if they do not feel they are necessary. He stated examples which can be referenced include the
vegetation ordinance and the home occupation ordinance. He stated the intent is to identify if there is a
way the Planning Board and the Council can interact to understand ongoing activities if Council were to
attend Planning Board meetings it would provide a means for the Council to understand what the
Planning Board has gone through to address particular topics and to understand there may be other ways
to deal with the topics other than outright rejection of an idea. Is there a better way of integrating our two
units to prevent committees from running for an extended period of time with no action taken on their
recommendations.

Council member Hess stated she began attending Planning Board meetings as often as she could for that
very reason. She stated she usually does not speak at the meetings because she does not feel it
appropriate to give an opinion prior to it being presented to her. She opined the vegetation topic was sent
to the Planning Board because the Council felt there was a connection between Stormwater and
Vegetation. At the time, the Council asked what are we trying to fix and if we are trying to fix clear
cutting then there may not be a need for the ordinance. She opined when the Council sends a topic to the
Planning Board they are not necessarily looking for an ordinance but are looking for an opinion. An
example is Community Lighting on the Planning Board’s agenda for tonight’s meeting. She stated if a
topic is investigated by the Planning Board and a report given to Council indicating that there is no
problem to be solved then Council is fine with this feedback. The Council may send something to the
Planning Board not because they feel it is necessary to have but because it is something that should be
explored and we feel the Planning Board is in the best position to explore it.

Town of Southern Shores, NC

Joint Planning Board/Council Meeting
January 22, 2008

Page | of 7



Mrs. Poisal stated the vegetation advisory board was started in 2001 as a response to a property owner’s
petition. In 2005 the board presented a plan to the Council which was deemed excessive, the board was
disbanded and a new vegetation committee was formed under the Planning Board. She stated she does
not recall the direct charge was given to tie into the stormwater review efforts. The committee has
appeared with draft ordinances at least three times before the Planning Board finally put before Council
with recommendation to hold a public hearing. She opined her understanding is that Council does not
want to hold a public hearing. She opined the volunteers have put in six years to try and develop
guidelines and they at least deserve a public hearing.

Chairman Kowalski stated there is another topic on the agenda which he would like to blend into the
discussion and this is regarding enforcement of ordinances strictly based on complaint driven. He stated
Mr. Hejduk indicated he did not have enough manpower to go around and determine what ordinances
were being violated. Mr. Hejduk relied on a system of receiving a complaint and Ordinances on the
books were not enforced until a complaint came through. Community Lighting is a topic that is
addressed by an existing ordinance that states lighting can not be scattered onto the neighbor’s property.
There is one complaint against an outdoor light on Ninth Ave. and now we are asked to go from the one
complaint and look at all the community lighting. He stated if we look at the existing ordinance we will
find that all residents of the town are in violation of the ordinance, adding we can pass all the ordinances
that we want but if they are not enforced or are enforced on a complaint driven basis the violations will
not be addressed and will only multiply.

Mr. Conners opined the vegetation ordinance was killed in committee by Council many years ago due to a
lack of political will by the elected officials at that time. He opined Council member McDonald has
brought up many good points regarding the language of the ordinance and he looks forward to working
with him on changes to the language. He stated what is very frustrating to members of the committee is
that after seven (7) years of working on the ordinance there is no will to take it to a public hearing and he
felt there is a clear will to kill the entire activity. He stated there is a linkage between the storm drainage
and the vegetation. Over the last year and half the committee moved away from the storm drainage
because it appeared this was a politically charged subject.

Directing the discussion to the topic of Duck Woods Drive, Chairman Kowalski asked if it is possible for
Council to determine if there is a problem that needs to be researched before it is submitted to the
Planning Board. Has there been an outpouring of residents on Duck Woods Drive asking for a re-
alignment of the road and if there is no problem identified can Council put a stop to the activity.

Mayor Smith responded there isn’t a problem with Duck Woods Drive. He stated the reason Duck Woods
Drive is mentioned is a result of some homeowners who have expressed problems making a left onto US
158 on the weekends because there is no traffic light at this intersection. He stated there was a
conversation that included the suggestion to align Duck Woods Drive with the street in Kitty Hawk and
the Department of Transportation (NCDOT) would be willing to install a light. This solution would help
the residents on Duck Woods Drive and in Kitty Hawk. He stated there was a discussion of possibly
talking to the civic association about relocating the street which would result in the combining of the
pieces of land into one larger piece of property. This might provide the possibility of the town using the
larger piece of property as a place to temporarily put spoils from the canal dredging project. He opined it
makes sense because it helps out the residents on Duck Woods Drive and helps the town with the canal
project. He stated there was a brief discussion of the benefit this would be to the entire town if the
residents of the street and the civic association agreed to this proposal.

Town of Southern Shores, NC

Joint Planning Board/Council Meeting
January 22, 2008

Page 2 of 7



Chairman Kowalski asked if anyone made an attempt to petition the 156 addresses on Duck Woods Drive
to determine if they share the same opinion as the complainant(s) regarding Duck Woods Drive. He
asked does the town operate on one or two complaints and create a committee or does the town operate on
a majority of 51% having the opinion there is a problem.

Mr. Conners stated he brought up the topic because he felt this would be a valid planning issue for the
town to consider. He stated there are some very creative people in town and he would hope they feel
comfortable bringing their ideas to the Planning Board or to Council.

Chairman Kowalski, using the example of the animal control committee, stated there have been other
concerns raised in the past, time spent researching the concerns, ordinances created and passed to address
and still with no changes to what is taking place. He asked if there is an alternative to address the areas of
concern.

Mayor Smith opined historically this has been a major problem with the town. A meeting is held and
issues are identified. Council assigns a committee to address the issue and then an ordinance is passed.
Mayor Smith stated if the problem was discussed with the majority of the community it might be
determined that there is no issue to be addressed. He stated he agrees we must get away from addressing
issues raised by a small minority. Regarding vegetation, Mayor Smith stated he has asked repeatedly
where there is a problem and the response has repeatedly been it is clear cutting. He stated there is more
growth in this town than there has ever been. Now we are going to tell a home owner if they want to put
a shed up they will be required to obtain a drawing from an architect identifying all vegetations on the
property and then we will give them a list that identifies what trees can be planted. Regarding clear
cutting, he stated if there is a problem that someone clears their lot and does not build within a period of
time it can be addressed. We can initiate a change which requires that construction be started within a
specific period of time after the lot is cleared and if this is not done then vegetation must be replanted.

Chairman Kowalski stated this solves the problem only if it is enforced.

Council member Stroud stated he has always felt complaint driven enforcement of ordinances is wrong.
If an ordinance is on the books it should be enforced. This is not a problem unique to Southern Shores.
He opined there are probably a number of ordinances on the books that are not enforced because of the
lack of manpower. He stated this relates back to the vegetation ordinance and the amount of time that has
passed since work began. He questioned how many lots are sitting in Southern Shores that have been
clear cut or are in violation of the ordinance up for approval.

Mr. Cowan stated there are lots undeveloped that are like that, referencing the ocean front and North
Dune Loop. He stated there are lots there that have very sparse vegetation where the sand is constantly
moving and shifting. He stated when a permit is issued in the office it goes through a lot disturbance
process which includes silt or construction fencing as required. He stated during the process of the permit

and construction we maintain that they control the sand shifting. He stated we can not control a vacant
lot.

Council member Stroud opined he agrees with the example given regarding stripping a lot and letting it
sit there. He stated he has a problem putting more burdens on homeowners, especially by telling them
what types of trees can be planted, which is what the ordinance does by listing specific trees which will
count toward the canopy coverage requirement. He stated it creates a condition which we probably can
not enforce because we do not have the manpower to ride around and look for it.

Chairman Kowalski asked if the town, under its current concept of what should be spent and the tax rate
to be levied, can do everything for nothing or is it willing to pay more money to do something.

Town of Southern Shores, NC

Joint Planning Board/Council Meeting
January 22, 2008

Page 3 of 7



Council member Stroud stated this is a question that can be asked in every town and the answer is there
will never be enough money to spend for the enforcement of these ordinances. He stated if he had been
involved in the process 7 years ago he would have suggested to not continue the process because he does
not feel there is a problem to be addressed.

Mr. Conners opined one of the issues that Chairman Kowalski has raised has merit, i.e. the unfair
enforcement of the ordinances. He stated there are some people being sited while others are not and it is
because the process is complaint driven.

Council member Stroud stated he disagreed with this. He opined he does not believe complaint driven
enforcement is the way to go but at the same time the citizens must understand that one code enforcement
officer is not going to see everything that goes on and must rely on the citizens to call in and alert him to
the activity. It is then his responsibility to investigate it and enforce the ordinance.

Mr. Conners opined he is in agreement that a complaint driven method does not work. Mr. Peckens stated
the prior Town Manager stated in a public meeting that his method for code enforcement was complaint
driven and every Council member agreed with him. Mayor Smith stated he advised Mr. Fuller this
approach did not make sense and it would allow someone that has an issue with someone else to call and
complain. He stated complaint driven is the wrong way to go and everyone in the town needs to be
treated the same.

Council member Hess stated her conversation with Mr. Fuller revealed his concerns the town did not have
sufficient staff to do proactive enforcement and he could not come up with a better solution. She asked if
we need to enforce an ordinance if the situation is not really affecting anyone. The infraction usually
takes place after town business hours and we would have to schedule the enforcement officer to visit at
that time.

Chairman Kowalski asked how we resolve this. Ordinance violations go un-enforced and the problem
compounds because people view the activity as accepted and do it themselves. This is exemplified in the
recent topic of community lighting. Should we remove the ordinance from the books because it is
accepted activity?

Council member Stroud stated we should be proactive in enforcement to the extent that enforcement can
be done. Mr. Cowan stated in the past he has been given complaints to investigate. He stated he has
stopped by the location upon receipt of the complaint, revisited three days after the initial complaint and
has used his judgment on what he considers to be a violation or not, depending on the situation at the
time. He stated he will then revisit the site two weeks later. He stated our regulations are written to
require a warning citation and then a citation. By the time we get to the citation cycle the violation is
gone and we have to start over from the beginning. He stated if this were changed to allow a citation to
be issued once the initial warning citation is issued it would allow us to enforce the ordinances on the
books. Council member Stroud stated we need to fix the flaw in the code if this is preventing
enforcement.

Mr. Cowan stated the way the ordinance is written on vehicle signage results in every town vehicle being
in violation of the ordinance. Council member Stroud stated this is an example of why he has a problem
passing ordinances that create circumstances like this. Council member Hess stated it was her
understanding the Planning Board was going to pursue parking and signage after the home occupation
ordinance was completed.

Chairman Kowalski stated he thinks the Council needs to decide some basic parameters, i.e. what has the
town evolved into; what kind of people live in this town; what types of employment are there — resident’s
going to a business or having their own businesses. We all need to be on the same playing field with the

Town of Southern Shores, NC

Joint Planning Board/Council Meeting
January 22, 2008

Page 4 of 7






